
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
The Democracy Service 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Jodie Harris 
 

Email: jodie.harris@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Wednesday 24 February 2021 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
 

The Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel will meet in a Virtual 
Meeting - online at 2.00 pm on Thursday 4 March 2021. 
 
This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s website. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

The Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel members are:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Member 
Councillor Harpreet Uppal (Chair) 
Councillor Martyn Bolt 
Councillor John Taylor 
Councillor Richard Eastwood 
Councillor Yusra Hussain 
Councillor Gwen Lowe 
Chris Friend (Co-Optee) 
Eilidh Ogden (Co-Optee) 
Andrew Bird (Co-Optee) 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 
To receive apologies for absence from those Members who are 
unable to attend the meeting. 

 

 
 

 

2:   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21st  
January 2021 
 

 
 

1 - 6 

3:   Interests 
 
The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

7 - 8 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 
Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 
 

 
 

 

5:   Deputations/Petitions 
 
The Panel will receive any petitions and hear any deputations from 
members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people can 
attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities. 
 
 

 



 

 

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation. 
 

 
 

6:   Public Question Time 
 
The Board will hear any questions from the general public.  
 
Due to Covid-19 restrictions, questions should be emailed to 
executive.governance@kirklees.gov.uk  no later than 10am on 3 
March 2021. 
 

 
 

 

7:   Private Rented Housing Sector (Support as a result of 
Covid-19) 
 
The Panel will consider a report providing information on the support 
offered to the private rented sector by the Council’s Housing 
Solutions Service as a result of and during the Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
Contacts:  

Helen Geldart, Head of Housing Services  
Stephen Cale, Operations Manager, Housing Solutions Service  
Sarah Holmes, Operations Manager, Housing Solutions  

 
 

 
 

9 - 14 

8:   Major Transport Schemes - Update 
 
The Panel will be presented with an update on major transport 
projects being developed by Kirklees Council. 
 
Contacts: 
 
Richard Hollinson, Head of Major Projects 
Keith Bloomfield, Major Transport Projects 
Andrew Higson, Transforming Cities Fund Programme Lead 
Tim Lawrence, Transport Strategy/Policy Group Leader 
 

 
 

15 - 46 

9:   Work Programme and Agenda Plan 
 
Members of the Panel will consider the work programme and agenda 
plan for the 2020/21 municipal year and will consider issues for 
inclusion during the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 

47 - 54 

mailto:executive.governance@kirklees.gov.uk


 

 

Contacts: 
 
Jodie Harris, Principal Governance and Democratic Engagement 
Officer  
 

 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

ECONOMY AND NEIGHBOURHOOD'S SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Thursday 21st January 2021 
 
Present: Councillor Harpreet Uppal (Chair) 
 Councillor John Taylor 

Councillor Richard Eastwood 
Councillor Gwen Lowe 
Councillor Martyn Bolt 
Councillor Yusra Hussain 

  
Co-optees Chris Friend 
  
In attendance Councillor Peter McBride  

Councillor Carole Pattison  
 
Chris Duffill, Head of Service, Business and Skills 
Will Acornley, Head of Operational Services 
Jill Greenfield, Service Director - Customer and 
Communities 
 
 

  
Observers: Fay McIntosh 
  
Apologies: Andrew Bird, Co-optee 

Eilidh Ogden, Co-optee 
 

 
1 Membership of the Committee 

Apologies for absence were received from Andrew Bird and Eilidh Ogden. 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
The minutes of the meetings of the Panel held on the 8th December 2021 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

3 Interests 
No interests were declared. 
 

4 Admission of the Public 
All items were considered in public session. 
 

5 Deputations/Petitions 
No deputations or petitions were received. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Economy and Neighbourhood Scrutiny Panel 13 March 20201 
 

2 
 

6 Public Question Time 
No questions were received from the public. 
 

7 Additional Restrictions Grant  
The Panel considered a report giving an update on the roll out of Government 
Covid-19 business grants being administered by the council and to seek the panel’s 
views on the future priorities for the discretionary Additional Restrictions Grant 
Scheme, which was presented by Chris Duffill, Head of Service, Business and 
Skills.  
 
Chris Duffill highlighted the following key areas: - 

 Local Restrictions Support Grant (LRSG) (Closed) – this applied to all 
businesses mandated to close by Government and who are registered to pay 
business rates and has been in operation during the November lockdown; 

 LRSG (Sector) – this grant scheme was specifically to cover nightclubs and 
sexual entertainment venues that Government required to close in March and 
had not re-opened; 

 LRSG (Open) this scheme provided grants to hospitality, accommodation and 
leisure businesses who were significantly impacted by local and then Tier 2 
restrictions in place from 5th August – 5th November 2020 and subsequently for 
businesses that were impacted but remained open during the period Kirklees 
was in tier 3;  

 Christmas support payment for wet-led pubs – this was a one-off payment for 
pubs that predominantly serve alcohol rather than provide food and were 
severely impacted by Covid-19 restrictions, with eligible businesses receiving a 
grant of £1,000; 

 Additional Restrictions Grant (ASG) – this was a discretionary grant scheme that 
was approved by Cabinet in November 2020 and aims to address gaps in the 
above schemes, including non-rate paying businesses required to close, 
businesses forming part of the retail, hospitality and leisure supply chains that 
are severely impacted by the virus and self-employed residents or other home-
based businesses that have not been able to secure Government financial 
support. 

 
In response to a question from the Panel regarding fairground workers, Chris Duffill 
advised that they were supported in the last lockdown from the discretionary grant 
scheme and  would be able to receive support again under the discretionary grant 
scheme. 
 
In response to a question from the Panel regarding Demolition Contractors with 
business rates over the threshold, Chris Duffil advised that there was an upper rate 
threshold which had been put into place during the first lockdown in March 2020, but 
this was not in place for the January 2021 lockdown.  
 
In response to a question from the Panel regarding companies with changes in their 
company status, Chris Duffil advised that it was dependent on who the liable party 
was and confirmed that his team was working to ensure that businesses could apply 
for the grant and secure funding. 
 

Page 2



Economy and Neighbourhood Scrutiny Panel 13 March 20201 
 

3 
 

During discussion of the grants the Panel noted that the complexity of the various 
forms caused concern and more difficult applications took longer to deal with. The 
Panel also noted that there was a backlog of claims and that the team were 
currently working to a three-week turnaround. 
 
Chris Duffill advised that one report for all claims was in the process of being 
prepared and that there were Facts and Questions available to view on the council’s 
website to support claimants. 
 
RESOLVED –  
1. The Panel noted the update on Additional Restriction Grants and thanked Chris 

Duffill for his contributions. 
2. The Panel agreed that a focus was required for the self-employed creative 

industry. 
3. That engagement with businesses to provide an understanding on who could 

apply was required. 
4. That communication with applicants throughout the claim process should be 

improved.  
 

8 Fly Tipping 
The Panel considered a report on the Greenspace Action Team and the new 
approach on clearing Fly tipping which was presented by Will Acornley, Head of 
Operational Services. 
 
Will Acornley highlighted the following key points: - 

 Greenspace Action Team - The team had been restructured to deal with fly 
tipping across the borough which includes a Greenspace Action Team Manager, 
Fly tipping Team Supervisor, Ward Rangers Supervisor and Enforcement 
Supervisor.  The new team is to focus on clearing fly tipping and collecting 
evidence; 

 Fly tipping – Unwanted items that are dumped on land that is not theirs or on the 
streets.  The top fly tipping items are household waste and black bags, 
construction waste and white goods; 

 Enforcement – Investigates waste complaints on all land within Kirklees, serves 
notice forcing landowners to clear waste, takes statements to prosecute anyone 
that has been seen dumping waste, deals with dog issues, abandoned vehicles 
and other waste issues, issues fixed penalty tickets and prosecutes offenders; 

 Ward Rangers – deals with removal of fly tipping, graffiti removal, vegetation cut 
back, street furniture and cleaning/painting, a small scale of highways repairs, 
Area deep cleans, grubbing out of weeds and clean signs and litter bins; 

 CCTV- A trial has been put in place to support fly tipping trials, the types of 
CCTV are mobile and static which are attached to lampposts; 

 
During discussion it was noted that fly tipping was still a big issue in Kirklees and in 
June and July the percentage of fly tipping was twice as high as in previous years 
 
Will Acornley advised that the increase in June and July was due to lockdown and 
home improvements. 
 
RESOLVED –  

Page 3



Economy and Neighbourhood Scrutiny Panel 13 March 20201 
 

4 
 

1. The Panel noted the report on Fly Tipping and thanked Will Acornley for his 
contributions. 

2. The Panel noted the good work the team had made which had impacted all 
wards.   

3. Further work is required in rural areas as well as built up areas. 
 

9 Community Champions Scheme  
The Panel considered a report on the Community Champions Scheme presented by 
Jill Greenfield, Service Director, Customer and Communities.  Public Health 
England released a review of disparities in risks and outcomes in June 2020 and the 
Government had focused on taking action to improve the support and protection for 
those communities and groups who had shown to be most at risk from Covid 19. 
 
The review highlighted the following key points;- 

 Some communities were disproportionately impacted by Covid 19, both in 
transmission rates and in mortality – most notably Pakistani and other South 
Asian communities, wider Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
communities and people with disabilities; 

 Morbidity and mortality rates will relate to wider social and economic factors 
including occupation/employment, multigenerational households, residential 
overcrowding and deprivation; 

 On 22nd October 2020, the Minister for Equalities announced that the Ministry 
of Housing Communities and Local Government would provide up to £24m of 
funding to support those communities who have suffered disproportionately 
from Covid 19; 

 Kirklees was one of the areas identified to apply for the funding as the area 
has very diverse communities with a range of complex and individual needs. 

 It was proposed that Kirklees will need to develop a Community Champion 
grant scheme that will need to follow a key principle of enabling our partners 
to be innovative, flexible and supporting local grassroot activity. 
 

During the discussion the Panel noted that people with disabilities/learning 
disabilities were not being overlooked and communication with the BAME 
communities on the vaccine rollout was a very positive approach. 
 
Jill Greenfield advised that funding had not yet been approved for Community 
Champions grant scheme and that Kirklees would be working closely with the 3rd 
sector and Public Health to support local grassroot activity.  
 
RESOLVED –  

1 The Panel acknowledged the report and requested further updates once 
funding had been secured. 

 
10. Work Programme; 
The Panel agreed to add the following topics to the agenda for the next Panel:- 

 Major transport scheme;   

 Digital update. 
 
The Panel agreed to add the following topics to the 2020/21 work programme:- 

 Winter maintenance linked to planning;  

Page 4



Economy and Neighbourhood Scrutiny Panel 13 March 20201 
 

5 
 

 Smaller Town Initiatives; 

 Dewsbury Town Deal. 
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
Ec

on
om

y 
& 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 8



 
 
Name of meeting: Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Date: 4th March 2021 

Title of report: Private Rented Housing Sector (Support as a result of Covid) 

Purpose of report: To provide information on the support offered to the private 
rented sector by the Council’s Housing Solutions Service as a result of and during 
the Covid 19 pandemic.  
 
Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?   

Not Applicable 

 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s 
Forward Plan (key decisions and private 
reports)? 
 

Key Decision – No 

Private Report/Private Appendix – No 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

Not Applicable  

 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service 
Director for Legal Governance and 
Commissioning? 
 

Joanne Bartholomew, Service Director 
Skills and Regeneration on behalf of 
David Shepherd, Strategic Director for 
Regeneration and Growth 

Not applicable 
 

Not applicable 

Cabinet member portfolio Councillor Cathy Scott 

 

Electoral wards affected: All 

Ward councillors consulted: None 

Public or private: Public 

Has GDPR been considered? Yes. The information in this report does not 
identify any individuals. 
 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


1. Summary 
 

1.1 The Kirklees Council Private Sector Housing Policy sets out how we work  
to drive improvements in the private rented sector (PRS) through advice and 
assistance to private landlords and tenants. This can be both reactive, 
responding to tenants complaining of disrepair, harassment or illegal eviction, 
and through proactive interaction with private landlords. Private Sector 
Housing Assistance Policy (kirklees.gov.uk) 
 

1.2  The Council’s Housing Solutions Service offers information, guidance and 
 support on renting privately, good landlord / tenant practices and tenancy law 
 and requirements and takes enforcement action against landlords and lettings 
 agents when necessary. 
 
1.3 Throughout the Covid pandemic the Housing Solutions Services has 
 continued to deliver essential services to private sector tenants and landlords. 
 This has been achieved by all but a few key staff working from home and 
 providing services online or by telephone. During the first national lockdown 
 all non-essential home visits/inspections in the private rented sector were 
 suspended. However, where emergency hazards existed physical 
 inspections continued while adhering to safe working practices and bespoke 
 Covid related risk assessments. New and safe ways of working have 
 continued to be developed and revised in line with National and corporate 
 guidelines. 
 
1.4 Over the 12 months period, covering the Covid restrictions, our Housing 
 Compliance team received 938 private rented disrepair enquiries.  This is 
 13% lower than over the preceding 12 months period.  Earlier during the 
 restrictions many tenants were reluctant to contact the service or to allow 
 anyone to visit their homes.  This included their landlords, contractors or our 
 housing inspectors.  Homeless applications taken to date represents a 30% 
 decrease compared to the previous year.     
 
1.5 Licensing and relicensing of larger shared accommodation (Houses in 
 Multiple Occupation – HMOs) have continued throughout the year although 
 associated inspections have been suspended until a greater relaxation of 
 restrictions. (There are 305 licensable HMOs) 
 
1.6 At the start of the pandemic, a ban on private rented evictions was introduced.  
 There remains a ban on bailiff evictions extended now until the end of March 
 2021.  Our Housing Compliance team within the Housing Solutions Service 
 have received 179 tenancy relations enquiries dealing with landlord 
 harassment and actual or threatened illegal evictions over the year. This is 
 18% lower than the preceding period.  Initially,  tenancy relations enquiries 
 were low level frustrations between tenants and their landlords but generally 
 there was a compliance or truce between both  parties. Volumes and levels 
 of enquiries are increasing.  Most are resolved  through telephone mediation 
 and advice although this may only be a temporary solution. 
 

Page 10

https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/housing/pdf/private-sector-housing-assistance-policy.pdf
https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/housing/pdf/private-sector-housing-assistance-policy.pdf


1.7  As a result of the ban on evictions, fewer households have been assessed as 
 threatened with homelessness from the private rented sector, however there 
 is high likelihood that this is masking pent-up demand which will start to 
 materialise once evictions re-start and court backlogs ease. The Housing 
 Solutions Services continue to offer advice and support to tenants whose jobs 
 have been affected by furlough or redundancy and therefore risk falling into 
 arrears and refer to relevant partners for benefits and/or debt advice. Along 
 with all other local authorities, we are anticipating a significant increase in the 
 need for this support in the next few months. 
 
1.8 Within Kirklees, most landlords have small property portfolios and are 
 ‘accidental landlords’.  A recent report (‘Lockdown, Rundown, Breakdown’ - 
 The COVID-19 lockdown and the impact of poor-quality housing on occupants 
 in the North of England by P. Brown, D. Newton, R. Armitage, L.Monchuk:  
 October 2020) concluded that many residents in the study suggested that 
 their landlords were reasonable and non-exploitative.  However, the findings 
 of this report support the notion that many tenants experience issues, not 
 through criminal intent, but through ignorance and inertia on the part of their 
 landlord.   
 
1.9 It is likely that the restrictions and legislative changes in place currently are 
 creating a stockpile of unreported disrepair and tenancy issues.  The financial 
 impact on both tenants and smaller landlords is likely to be significant through 
 rent arrears, family breakdowns, repairs affordability and missed mortgage 
 payments. A recent report (Getting ahead on falling behind Tackling the UK's 
 building arrears crisis, Lindsay Judge, February 2021) explores how families 
 have managed their housing costs over the Covid-19 crisis and estimates that 
 just shy of 6% of private rented sector families are behind in part or full with 
 their housing payments in January 2021.  
  
1.10 We continue to contribute to relevant Task & Finish Groups aimed at assisting 
 vulnerable groups during the COVID pandemic.  This includes those living 
 within Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs), accommodation with shared 
 facilities such as kitchens or bathrooms.  These properties may be used by 
 students, asylum seekers and low-income single people as general needs 
 housing. 

 Licensable HMO – a bespoke communications and poster programme 
aimed at both landlords and tenants around mitigating risks more 
prevalent within shared homes. 

 Non-licensable HMOs – the smaller HMOs are harder to target but a co-
ordinated approach within the communities hopes to reach such 
households. 

 
1.11 In addition to our reactive Housing Compliance team, we provide a small 
 Private Lettings Service.  The proactive service includes liaising with landlords 
 and property agents in facilitating appropriate and affordable properties.  We 
 aim to remove the barriers to accessing private rented properties through a 
 bond guarantee scheme, rent negotiation and rent in advance.  We also 
 inspect properties to identify any issues prior to the commencement of a 
 tenancy.  Currently, volumes of private rented tenancies facilitated are low.  

Page 11



 We are exploring further options and resources to help stimulate the market 
 further. 
 
1.12 In April 2020, the National Landlords Association (NLA) and the Residential 
 Landlords Association (RLA) merged into the National Residential Landlords 
 Association (NRLA).  Prior to this merger we established closer links to their 
 regional representative to develop a proactive mutually beneficial relationship.  
 To help professionalise and support the local private rented market. 
 
  
2. Information required to take a decision 
 
2.1 No decision is required; this information report is submitted at the request of 
 the Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel. 

 
3. Implications for the Council 

3.1 Working with People 

 The service mainly supports private rented sector residents who are on low 
 incomes and or are in some way vulnerable and are living in the most affordable 
 rented accommodation. The work to improve property conditions and 
 management practices has positive impact on the health, safety and general 
 wellbeing of residents.  

3.2 Working with Partners 

 The service continues to work with private sector landlords and the National 
 Residential Landlords Association to help professionalise and support the local 
 private rented market. 

3.3 Climate Change and Air Quality 
  

  The move towards providing more services online and by phone has reduced the 
  need for housing officers to travel to properties across the district. 

 
3.4 Improving outcomes for children 
  
 Improving the management of and property conditions of family homes in the 
 private rented sector has a positive impact on the health, safety and general 
 wellbeing of children. 

 
3.5 Other (e.g. Legal/Financial or Human Resources) Consultees and their 

opinions 
  
 None. 

 
4. Next steps and timelines 

 
The impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on the private rented sector will continue to 

Page 12



be monitored and support and services adapted to support Kirklees private 
rented sector residents and landlords. 
 

5. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 
That information in the report be noted. 

 
6. Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s recommendations 

 
That Panel members note and comment on the information provided and note the 
work carried out by the Housing Solutions Service to maintain services to some 
of our more vulnerable residents during the pandemic.  

 
7. Contact officer  

 
Helen Geldart, Head of Housing Services  
(01484 221000 Ext 77935 – helen.geldart@kirklees.gov.uk)  
 
Stephen Cale, Operations Manager, Housing Solutions Service  
(01484 221000 Ext 76924 – stephen.cale@kirklees.gov.uk) 
 
Sarah Holmes, Operations Manager, Housing Solutions  
(01484 221000 Ext 76014 - sarah.holmes@kirklees.gov.uk) 
 

 
8. Background Papers and History of Decisions 

 
None 
 

9. Service Director responsible  
 
Joanne Bartholomew, Service Director Skills and Regeneration 
 

Page 13

mailto:helen.geldart@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:stephen.cale@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:sarah.holmes@kirklees.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Name of meeting:  Economy and Neighborhoods Scrutiny 
Date:     4th March 2021   
Title of report:   Major Transport Projects – Update 
 
Purpose of report:  
 
Present an update on major transport projects being developed by Kirklees Council 
 

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?   

No 
 
 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan (key decisions and private reports)? 
 

N/A 
 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

N/A 
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
 
 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Legal Governance and Commissioning? 
 

David Shepherd  
Strategic Director for Growth and Regeneration 
 
19/02/21 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
N/A 

Cabinet member portfolio Give name of Portfolio Holder/s 
 
Cllr Peter McBride 
 

 
Electoral wards affected: All 
 
Ward councillors consulted:  N/A 
 
Public or private: Public 
 
Has GDPR been considered? Yes. There are no GDPR concerns.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


 

 

1. Summary 
 

1.1 This report provides  an update to the committee on the following: 
 

 Overall aims and objectives of our major transport schemes 

 The different transportation programmes and their funding sources 

 The processes we go through to develop schemes and draw down funding 

 A position statement on each transportation project (set out in the appendices of this report) 
 

This report does not include any information on the Trans-Pennine Route Upgrade (a Network 
Rail project) or information about highway schemes/projects contained in the Highways Capital 
Plan (which for the purposes of this report have not been classed as ‘major’ transport projects).  

 
2. Information required to take a decision 

 
2.1 Overall Aims and Objectives of our Major Transport Schemes 

 
The transportation teams within the Major Project Service are working on a significant number of 
transportation plans, programmes and projects concerning active travel, public transport 
investment, supporting planned growth in the Local Plan, planning for economic growth and 
recovery, improving air quality, reducing congestion. The total capital value of transportation 
projects being programme/project managed by the Major Projects Service currently stands at 
circa £200 Million. This excludes the capital investment by DfT/Network Rail into the Trans-
Pennine Route Upgrade, the Council’s Highways Capital Plan and local investment set out in the 
Local Transport Plan. 
 

2.2 There is a clear economic rationale for the major transportation schemes set out in this report 
which are aiming to help accommodate future growth in housing and jobs, as set out in the 
Council’s adopted Local Plan. The majority of the schemes are allocated as transport proposals 
within the Local Plan with a strong alignment with the main growth locations and planned growth 
is dependent on phased introduction of new infrastructure in many parts of Kirklees. As well as 
jobs created in construction, supply chains and social value outcomes, all schemes are subject to 
value for money testing which indicates that all schemes generate clear net gains in terms of 
public investment. 
 

2.3 All of the major transport schemes referred to this report are externally funded by central 
Government through (the now devolved) governance of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority 
(WYCA). In practice this means that all our schemes are a partnership with the WYCA. The 
implications of this are set out in various sections of this report but include governance, approval 
processes, assurance, legal funding agreements, public consultation and joint use of publicity 
and communications. 

 
2.4 Wherever possible, projects are also aimed at improving the local environment, improving health 

inequalities, embedding place shaping/urban design principles and best practice, green streets 
principles (the inclusion of new street trees and green/blue infrastructure) and sustainable 
drainage systems.  

 
2.5 For its part, Kirklees continues to develop several complex multi-faceted transport schemes 

which at their core include public transport, cycling, walking initiatives as can be seen by the 
different transportation funding programmes being pursued. At the heart of scheme development 
is a multi-disciplinary approach which includes services from across the council, including 
highway design, road safety, urban traffic control, maintenance/network management, highway 
construction, planning, town centre teams, legal, procurement, assets, finance, communications, 
drainage, environmental protection, public health and more. 

 
2.6 Schemes are managed at both project and programme board level. Project scope, scheduling, 

resource management, budgets and risk are managed throughout. Scheme highlight reports are 
produced on a monthly basis with any necessary decisions following council protocols as 
appropriate. Page 16



 

 

2.7 As well as working on major transport project development, the transportation teams are working 
on place making projects in and around our major transport hubs (e.g. Better Connected Stations 
projects in Huddersfield and Dewsbury) and looking at ways money can be invested in certain 
communities (e.g. Streets for People project). 
 

2.8 The teams are also supporting rail and bus investment plans in Kirklees, supporting the council’s 
planning and housing delivery functions (albeit not in control of those programmes) and have an 
increasing role in influence West Yorkshire and local transport planning and policy work such as 
the emerging WYCA Connectivity Strategy, their rail vision and future mass transit plans as 
examples. 

 
2.9 The Council declared a ‘climate emergency’ in January 2019 and subsequently set an ambitious 

‘net zero’ carbon emissions target of 2038. This aligns with a climate emergency declaration by 
WYCA. WYCA have developed and published a Carbon Emissions Reduction Pathway starts to 
identify policies and strategies needed to decarbonise all sectors including power, construction, 
industry and transportation. Their roadmap covers all forms of transport including buses, rail, 
cars, walking and cycling. Work is now underway at WYCA to bring forward project specific 
assessment of carbon impacts on individual projects. As Kirklees schemes are developed the 
transportation teams are looking carefully at carbon impacts (along with other environmental, 
social and economic impacts) to shape schemes and where necessary mitigate and adapt. 

 
2.10  The transportation teams are currently progressing ‘major’ transportation schemes based on a 

three main funding programmes, all of which are administered by WYCA – the West Yorkshire 
Transport Fund (plus) (part of a wider funding programme known as the Growth Deal); the 
Transforming Cities Fund and the Active Travel Fund. 

2.11 West Yorkshire Transport Fund (plus) 
 
In July 2014, Kirklees, together with the WY Combined Authority, the other four WY district 
councils (plus) York, created a government funded West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund to 
provide much needed major investment in transport to create an environment where economic 
growth can occur.  The West Yorkshire Combined Authority secured £1bn of funding spread over 
20 years. Investment funding started in 2015/16. 

2.12 The fund is targeted at enabling key development areas and is intended to help create about 
20,000 new jobs across its projects. A number of strategic transport projects across West 
Yorkshire are aiming to achieve: 

 Improved motorway access 

 Orbital road improvements 

 Radial improvements on corridors for better public transport options into our urban centres 

 Road and rail improvements between district hubs to provide capacity and better connectivity 

 Enhanced rail station gateways with increased car parking capacity for park and ride 
 

2.13 Transforming Cities Fund 

Announced on 11th March 2020, the Leeds City Region will benefit from £317 million of 
investment from the Transforming Cities Fund. Bradford, Calderdale, Craven, Harrogate, 
Kirklees, Leeds, Selby, Wakefield and York are all set to benefit from projects designed to 
improve dramatically people’s access to public transport, cycling and walking. This funding 
programme is seen as major step towards the climate emergency ambitions for the region in 
terms of transportation. 

2.14 The funding is targeted at providing an accessible, attractive and cleaner alternative to car 

journeys to enable people to access skills and job opportunities, particularly those who 
face disadvantage, to tackle the climate emergency and to raise the region’s productivity. 
The programme, which is being delivered by the Combined Authority in partnership with local 
authorities, will be funded through £317 million from the Department for Transport (DfT) plus local 

Page 17



 

 

match funding up to £164.5 million. Most of the funded projects are aimed at transforming public 
transport hubs and interchanges, such as those at Huddersfield and Dewsbury, creating active 
travel options and increasing bus trips. 

2.15 These outcomes will be delivered by: 
 

 Transforming access to employment opportunities and skills provision for our communities in 
areas of persistent poverty 

 Creating smart, clean and liveable places which make cycling and walking the obvious choice for 
accessing town and city centres 

 Improving air quality and reducing car dominance in our town and city centres 

 Transforming the public transport and active travel offer to and from housing and employment 
sites, ensuring that people are able to make sustainable travel choices from day one 

 Making travel by bus an attractive and more reliable offer for commuters  
 

2.16 Active Travel Fund 

In November 2020, WYCA was awarded £12.5 million from the Department for Transport’s Active 
Travel Fund to deliver an a programme of ambitious proposals to create more space for cycling 
and walking, while easing the pressure on public transport and relieving congestion. This funding 
is to deliver a wide-ranging programme of new cycling and walking measures. 

 
2.17 WYCA Assurance Framework 
 

The WYCA Assurance Framework was developed in 2015 as part of the Growth Deal with 
Government. Its purpose is to ensure that the necessary systems and processes are in place to 
manage funding effectively, and to ensure the successful delivery of the Strategic Economic 
Framework (SEF) ambitions. Its focus is to ensure that necessary practices and standards are 
implemented to provide the Government, Combined Authority, the LEP and local partners with 
assurance that decisions over funding (and the means by which these decisions are 
implemented) are proper, transparent and deliver value for money. It covers all projects and 
programmes funded from Government or local sources that flow through the LEP and WYCA. 
The framework has recently been updated to streamline certain elements and to take into 
account the Mayoral responsibilities once elected. 

 
2.18 The assurance framework is relevant in the context of this update as the processes it sets out 

largely dictate the pace in which major transportation projects can be developed, tested, 
assessed, funded and delivered. A full process chart is included in the Appendices, however a 
summarised version of the main stages is set out below: 

 
 

 
 
 
2.19 All WYCA funded schemes must pass through the Assurance Process. The Assurance Process is 

administered by the WYCA Portfolio Management Office and decisions are ratified by the relevant 
WYCA political committees. In simple terms, this means that each project must pass each of the 
main gateway points shown in the diagram above before it is allowed to continue to the next stage. 
This process is common to most major infrastructure projects and programmes across the country 
and indeed, the world, where major projects move from initial inception and objective setting, into 
early design/feasibility and testing of options, public consultation/engagement, refinement of 
options, preferred options, final designs and costings and then into delivery. 

 

Page 18



 

 

2.20 Much of this process works through the submission of a series of business cases, which for 
transportation schemes are prepared in accordance with an agreed methodology with WYCA and 
which is in accordance with the Government’s ‘Green Book’ which is produced by the Treasury to 
appraise and evaluate policies, projects and programmes. This is important context to this update 
as the business cases are based around five main cases, all of which need to be passed at each 
stage – strategic (what is the rationale?), economic (what is the value of doing it?), commercial (is 
it realistic?), financial (what is the impact on the public sector budget?) and management (is it 
based on a manageable delivery plan with good governance). 

 
2.21 Major projects (very significant scale, impact, benefit and cost – millions, and usually funded by the 

Government via WYCA) can often take several years to go to through these processes due to the 
complexity of preparing business cases which meet these tests and the preparation of background 
evidence to prove them, such as traffic modelling and the assessment/reassessment of scheme 
‘optioneering’. Major projects often include other complex legislative and statutory matters which 
need to be resolved such as land assembly/land acquisition, CPO (if necessary and appropriate), 
planning permissions, associated highway powers/processes (such as Traffic Regulation Orders), 
various legal matters, and major procurement/delivery routes (if not being delivered by the 
council’s highway construction service). 

 
2.22 A summary of the current major transport schemes is set out in the appendices to this report to 

give a position statement on each scheme. Project descriptions, timings and current funding are 
given in good faith at the time of writing this report and to provide scrutiny with as much information 
as Officers can give at the time of writing. Given the complexity of these schemes these factors are 
all subject to change. 

 
3. Implications for the Council 
 
3.1 Working with People 
 
 The council works in partnership with WYCA to engage and consult on all schemes. This is a key 

requirement of the assurance framework and must be carried out to pass each gateway. Kirklees 
Council, along with all the other West Yorkshire authorities, uses the WYCA ‘Your Voice’ system to 
consult and engage with local people. This is complemented with leaflets, posters and local 
stakeholder events. The council also publicises its own communication information alongside this 
so that all stakeholders can be signposted to ways in which their comments can be made. All 
comments received are fully taken into account in developing the next steps for each project. 

 
 
3.2 Working with Partners 

 
  As can be seen by this report, a significant component of bringing forward major transportation projects 

is working in partnership with others, particularly WYCA. Other public and private sector partnerships 
are at play, for example Sustrans, private sector consultancy and private sector construction and 
delivery organisations. As some of the Kirklees schemes near delivery stage, partnerships are now 
being formed with local social value enterprise organisations to exploit opportunities for local job 
creation/apprenticeships. It is clear there are far greater number of stakeholders than ever before with 
whom to engage and consult in the area of major transportation schemes. The Major Projects Service 
has given additional consideration as to partnership working and the development thereof and are 
underway with expanding upon existing relationships and networks, as part of an holistic approach to 
more general transport strategy. Several schemes are being jointly promoted with adjoining local 
authorities, such as the A629 Halifax Road programme (Calderdale) and the Mirfield-Dewsbury-Leeds 
(Leeds City Council) to help address cross-boundary connectivity and movement issues. 

 
3.3 Place Based Working  
 

Whilst some of the major transportation schemes are very large in scale and cover multiple 
communities and geographies, there are interventions which happen at a local place level.  This is the 
case across all council directorates – including public health, environmental health, and major 
projects.  It is vital to recognise the importance of place within this work and to use intelligence from 

Page 19



 

 

the Place Standard tool. Different places have a range of differing assets, environmental factors, 
topographies, and infrastructures which influence walking/cycling, accessibility to public transport and 
traffic congestion. Information from individual consultation events and also the council’s ongoing place 
based conversations are feeding into major project scheme development. 

 
3.4 Climate Change and Air Quality 

 
An objective of each of the projects is to improve air quality and have a positive impact on the 
environment, wherever possible. As confirmed earlier in this report the major transportation projects 
are taking a holistic, multi-disciplinary approach to bringing forward new infrastructure including green 
streets principles, reduction in traffic congestion (particularly within existing Air Quality Management 
Areas). 
 
Poor air quality is a significant public health issue and poor environmental conditions have been 
created due to the high volumes of traffic and levels of congestion along several of the main road 
corridors subject to major transport scheme improvements and in Huddersfield Town Centre. 
Schemes have the potential to have a two-fold beneficial impact on the environment – firstly the 
reduction in congestion and improvements to journey reliability should reduce the frequent stopping, 
idling and acceleration that generate the highest levels of emissions. Secondly, the provision of the 
green infrastructure and landscaping features across schemes will also help with natural air cooling, 
collecting nitrogen oxides and the absorption of carbon dioxide. 
 
Increasing cycling and walking as modes of transportation is part of the Council’s decarbonisation and 
air quality plans. Internal combustion engine (ICE) transportation is the largest sectoral emitter of 
carbon, which causes global warming, and pollutants which cause localised air quality problems. 
Increasing the modal shift from ICE to active travel is one of the critical paths for reducing emissions 
from our transportation sector. It is recognised that it is not possible to convert all personal and 
business transportation to active travel, however, modal shift of the appropriate journeys will have 
positive benefits for the latent alternative transport types, for example, reduction of numbers of 
vehicles on the road overall will allow traffic to move more freely in the network, free flowing traffic, 
even if powered by ICE will be more efficient and therefore less emissions.  

 
It is recognised that active travel alone cannot solve the Climate Emergency or our Air Quality 
problems.  Active travel must be part of an integrated transportation system, where the other aspects 
of the system, such as public transport, and personal/business transport have their emissions reduced 
or eliminated – depending on sector or use case. The council’s Transforming Cities Fund and Active 
Travel Fund programmes are significant steps forward in addressing these issues. 

 
The Council declared a ‘climate emergency’ in January 2019 and subsequently set an ambitious 
‘net zero’ carbon emissions target of 2038. This aligns with a climate emergency declaration by 
WYCA. WYCA have developed and published a Carbon Emissions Reduction Pathway starts to 
identify policies and strategies needed to decarbonise all sectors including power, construction, 
industry and transportation. Their roadmap covers all forms of transport including buses, rail, cars, 
walking and cycling. Work is now underway at WYCA to bring forward project specific assessment 
of carbon impacts on individual projects. As Kirklees schemes are developed the transportation 
teams are looking carefully at carbon impacts (along with other environmental, social and 
economic impacts) to shape schemes and where necessary mitigate and adapt. 

 
 
3.5 Improving outcomes for children 
 

The report to scrutiny last December referenced several initiatives that the transportation teams are 
involved with alongside colleagues in the Highway Authority and other partners, including the school 
travel strategy, community hubs, Mode Shift STARS, Road Safety initiatives, Bikeability, Scooter 
training, and cycle and scooter storage across education centres. 
 
With regards to the major transportation projects themselves, improved air quality, investment in active 
travel, reduced traffic congestion, improved public transport, improved public realm/highway 

Page 20



 

 

green/blue infrastructure and social value outcomes, such as construction apprenticeships, all have 
significant benefits for young people’s health and future prosperity. 

 
 

3.6 Other (e.g. Legal/Financial or Human Resources)  
 

The bringing forward of major transport infrastructure involves considerable financial, legal and human 
resources to achieve. The service is highly reliant on a highly skilled core transportation group of 
council staff working alongside numerous other council service areas, bringing in other specialist skills 
where appropriate. The total value of the major transportation programme is currently represents circa 
£200 million of investment into walking, cycling, public transport and major highway improvements. 
The council’s move to create a new Major Projects Service was a response to the size of this 
challenge to create dedicated staff capacity to manage these large scale projects and programmes. 

 
4 Consultees and their opinions 
 
4.1 WYCA Your Voice, public consultation and statutory body views are fully considered as part of 

scheme development and as key stages in working in partnership with the West Yorkshire 
Combined Authority as set out above. 

 
5 Next steps and timelines 
 
5.1 Officers will continue to progress the major transport schemes working in partnership with WYCA. 

Timelines for each project are set out in the scheme updates in the appendices. 
 
6 Officer recommendations and reasons 

 
6.1 Officers recommend that this update is noted and that work continues to develop these schemes. 

 
7 Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s recommendations 
 
7.1 The Cabinet Portfolio Holder has been consulted with regard to the contents of this report and 

supports the officer recommendation. 
 
8 Contact officer(s) 

 
Richard Hollinson, Head of Major Projects 
Keith Bloomfield, Major Transport Projects 
Andrew Higson, Transforming Cities Fund Programme Lead 
Tim Lawrence, Transport Strategy/Policy Group Leader 

 
9 Background Papers and History of Decisions 

 

 Dec 2020 – Economy & Neighbourhoods Scrutiny – Active Travel 

 Sep 2020 – Cabinet – Kirklees Transforming Cities Fund 

 July 2020 – Cabinet – Major Transport – Major Scheme Approvals and Update 

 Nov 2018 - Cabinet - Scheme update 

 Dec 2017 - Cabinet - Scheme update together with an introduction to the Assurance 
Process (administered by the West Yorkshire Combined Authority) which all WY+TF 
schemes must follow 

 Aug 2017 - Cabinet - ‘WY+TF Land Acquisition Fund’ agreement 

 Feb 2016 - Cabinet - ‘West Yorkshire Transport Fund – Scheme Principles’ 
 
10 Service Director responsible  

 
Angela Blake - Economy and Skills 
 

  

Page 21



 

 

Appendix 1 – Major Transport Schemes – Current Status Update 
 

 

Scheme 

A629 Phase 4 (WY+TF) 
 

A629 Halifax Road (Phase 5) (WY+TF) 
 

A62 to Cooper Bridge (WY+TF) 
 

A62 Smart Corridor (Phase 1) (WY+TF) 
 

Holmfirth Town Centre Access Plan (WY+TF) 
 

Huddersfield Southern Corridors (WY+TF) 
 

Mirfield to Dewsbury to Leeds (WY+TF) 
 

Bradley to Brighouse Cycling (WY+TF) 
 

Huddersfield Rail Station Gateway (WY+TF and TCF) 

Cross Church Street (WY+TF) 

Better Connected Stations (TCF) 

Emergency Active Travel Funding – Tranche 2 (ATF) 

Streets for People (LTP) 

Dewsbury Town Centre Walking & Cycling Improvements (TCF) 

Dewsbury-Batley-Tingley Sustainable Travel Corridor (TCF) 

Dewsbury-Cleckheaton Sustainable Travel Corridor (TCF) 

Heckmondwike Bus Station (TCF) 

Huddersfield Bus Station (TCF) 

Trinity Street Foot/Cycle Crossing (TCF) 

Wakefield Road Sustainable Travel Corridor (WY+TF and TCF) 

 
  

Page 22



 

 

Project A629 Phase 4 

Project 
description 

The A629 Halifax to Huddersfield scheme is the fourth (and 
final) phase of the A629 corridor improvement programme.   
 
The A629 corridor programme is being jointly developed in 
partnership between Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
(CMBC) and Kirklees Metropolitan Borough Council (KMBC) 
and addresses strategic accessibility through highway capacity 
and operational improvements, cycle infrastructure and 
enhancements to the bus network.   
 
Phase 4 provides the multimodal infrastructure following 
capacity improvements from Phases 1a, 1b and 5, focusing on 
a holistic corridor view to address journey times and routing for 
sustainable modes between Halifax and Huddersfield.   
 

Funding £25.9m (Funding agreement with Calderdale) of which £6.4m 
estimated costs for Kirklees elements (25% of budget) 

Delivery External 

Current Status Approval of the Full Business Case + Costs is expected in 
summer 2023 

On site By winter 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

Project 

A629 Halifax Road (Phase 5) 

Project 
description 

The A629 Halifax Road project is Phase 5 of a package of 
improvements for the A629 between Halifax and Huddersfield 
which are being jointly delivered by Kirklees Council and 
Calderdale Council. 
 
The Phase 5 project is aiming to ease congestion, reduce 
journey times and create capacity on the corridor between 
Ainley Top roundabout and Huddersfield ring road to 
accommodate future housing and employment growth needed 
for the vitality of Kirklees, its neighbours, and the wider region. 
 

Funding £13,296m WY+TF 

Delivery Internal 

Current Status FBC target submission date of 1 April 2021 

On site September 2021 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 24



 

 

Project A62 / A644 / Cooper Bridge 

Project 
description 

A major transport improvement scheme that provides for better 
linked access between Huddersfield Town Centre and the 
Strategic Road Network (SRN).  
 
Using both existing and new lengths of highway the scheme 
aims to provide additional vehicular capacity to reduce 
congestion and improve travel times between Bradley Road / 
A62, Cooper Bridge and the SRN. 
 
The scheme includes  
 
Bradley Road / Colne Bridge Road / Oak Road 
 
Modifications to the existing intersection to provide extra 
vehicular capacity to support both existing and future traffic 
demand. Pedestrian facilities will be upgraded and prioritised. 
Cycling facilities will be introduced on highway in accordance 
with latest guidelines. The scheme will incorporate provision to 
access the Bradley to Brighouse Cycle Route. 
 
Cooper Bridge 
 
Major changes to the existing layout to improve access and 
through movement for vehicles, cyclists, and pedestrians. 
  

Funding £69.3m WY+TF 

Delivery External 

Current Status OBC target submission is July 2021 

On site March 2024 

 

 
  Page 25



 

 

Project A62 Smart Corridor (Phase 1) 

Project 
description 

Congestion, slow journey times and poor air quality are 
currently problems along the A62 Leeds Road in Huddersfield. 
We are working with West Yorkshire Combined Authority to 
make improvements along the A62, specifically the section 
between Huddersfield Ring Road and Old Fieldhouse Lane. 
 
The improvements include big changes at the gyratory outside 
the Great Northern Street retail park, to remove the 
complicated system and replace it with a simpler design. 
 

Funding £7.352 million (Activity 4 approval) plus £853k ESIF 

Delivery External 

Current Status FBC + Costs March 2021 

On site Contract award March 2021, start on site June 2021 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 26



 

 

Project Holmfirth Town Centre Access Plan 

Project 
description 

The Holmfirth Town Centre Access Plan scheme is designed to 
relieve congestion and queueing at peak time in the town 
centre, as part of the Corridor Improvement Programme. 
 
The aims of the project are to: 
 

 ease congestion in Holmfirth 
 improve efficiency and journey time reliability for all road 

users 
 create better access for residents, workers, and 

business owners 
 create a more attractive environment for residents, 

businesses, and visitors 
 enhance the area as a tourist destination 

Funding £3.97m WY+TF 

Delivery External 

Current Status Target date for FBC submission June 2021. 

On site January 2022 
 

 

 
 
  

Page 27



 

 

Project Huddersfield Southern Corridors 

Project 
description 

Plans have been developed to improve four key locations on 
busy routes to the south of Huddersfield town centre, where 
there are delays, queuing traffic, and limited facilities for 
pedestrians and cyclists. These routes are often severely 
congested at peak times, which makes travel difficult, and 
travel times unreliable and slow. 
 
The four locations are 
 

 Lockwood Bar - A616 Lockwood Road / Bridge Street / 
'Lockwood Bar' / Albert Street / Crowther Street 

 Longroyd Lane - A62 Manchester Road junction with 
Longroyd Lane and B6432 St Thomas' Road 

 Folly Hall - A616 Lockwood Road / Chapel Hill junction 
with B6432 Colne Road and St Thomas' Road 

 Queensgate - Huddersfield Ring Road, linking to Cross 
Church Street and Shorehead Roundabout. 
 

Funding £13.57m (£10.42m WYCA & £3.15m Kirklees) 

Delivery Lockwood External, the rest Internal 

Current Status FBC plus costs by the end of this financial year 

On site Spring 2021 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 Page 28



 

 

Project Mirfield to Dewsbury to Leeds  

Project 
description 

The scheme focusses on the A644 and A653 transport 
corridors between Mirfield and Leeds, through Dewsbury.  It 
seeks to improve multi-modal travel opportunities, reduce 
negative transport impacts on local communities and help to 
integrate new developments. 
 
The scheme encompasses new walking and cycling 
infrastructure, bus lanes and junction modifications.  A public 
consultation for the scheme has helped form a shortlist of 
schemes for a ‘Phase 1’ project that fits into the current funding 
envelope.  There is also significant scheme overlap with the 
Transforming Cities Fund Programme. 
 
The scheme recognises the changing localities because of the 
Kirklees Local Plan, North Kirklees Growth Zone (Dewsbury 
Riverside and Chidswell), Dewsbury Development Framework 
and Blueprint. 
 

Funding £12.5m, West Yorkshire Transport Fund 
£0.5m, Leeds Developer Contributions 

Delivery TBC – likely to be externally procured. 

Current Status Outline Business Case submitted and currently being reviewed 
by WYCA. FBC submission October 2021. 

On site February 2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 Page 29



 

 

 

Project Bradley to Brighouse Cycling Scheme 

Project 
description 

The project will deliver a 6.5km high quality cycle and walking 
route between the settlements of Bradley and Brighouse 
crossing the Kirklees and Calderdale border. The route will 
predominantly be delivered off highway but provide strategic 
links to the highway network, where required, to complement a 
number of other highways improvement schemes planned for 
the area including the A62 / A644 / Cooper Bridge Scheme. 
The project will complete a long standing ‘missing link’ in the 
strategic cycle network in the region and National Cycle 
Network. 
 

Funding £2.328m (WY+TF £1.862m, Highways England £0.466m) 

Delivery Tbc 

Current Status FBC + costs Sep 2021 

On site Early 2022 

 

  
  

Page 30



 

 

Project Huddersfield Station Gateway (WY+TF and TCF) 

Project 
description 

The scheme includes the following interventions. 

 Trinity Street underpass upgrade of underpass at Ring 
Road (Castlegate) junction. Connecting the station to 
Trinity West and Greenhead College. 

 Highway works, lighting of Brunswick St footpath; 
footway widening in John William St 

 Eastern station entrance, extended gate line in ticket 
hall; extra door to platform 1 

 Station subway extension and new western entrance at 
warehouse/car park. 

 Mobility hubs – at the Station Forecourt, Bath Street, 
New North Parade and Oldgate car parks. 

 John William Street and St John’s Road – footways, 
cycle lanes and landscaping in John William Street and 
Wood Street, connecting to the new Market and 
Cambridge Road car park. 

 Northumberland Street- footways, cycle lanes and 
landscaping, connecting to the Southgate campus. 

Funding £10m WY+TF, £7.5m TCF 
 

Delivery Internal and external.  The subway and eastern station 
entrance will be delivered in partnership with Trans-Pennine 
Express and Network Rail. 
 

Current Status WY+TF funding - OBC date tbc 
TCF funding – OBC date tbc 

On site 2022 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 31



 

 

Project Cross Church Street 

Project 
description 

Plans for improvements to Cross Church Street and Queen 
Street have been developed to enhance the town centres 
public space.  

Queen Street and King Street will see a new Pedestrian and 
Cycle Zone between the Lawrence Batley Theatre and Zetland 
Street prohibiting all motor vehicles except for permit holders, 
loading will however be permitted certain times. 
 
Cross Church Street will see a new Pedestrian and Cycle 
Zone between the Kingsgate Shopping Centre entrance and 
Kirkgate prohibiting all motor vehicles except for during 
permitted times. 
 
These streets will allow cyclists to travel in both directions but 
the existing one-way arrangements for motor vehicles will 
remain.  
 
The restricted part of Queen Street will be block-paved in the 
road area to match King Street, and Cross Church Street will 
have different block-paving in the road area to indicate the 
Pedestrian and Cycle Zone. The footways will be paved with 
high quality Yorkstone, with new street furniture provided. 
 

Funding £1,290,925 WY+TF & £800,000 Kirklees 

Delivery Internal 

Current Status FBC + Costs tbc 

On site Tbc 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 32



 

 

 

Project Better Connected Stations 

Project 
description 

The scheme will deliver an upgraded walking and cycling route 
between Huddersfield Rail and Bus Stations, and access to 
and new facilities at Dewsbury Rail Station. 

These interventions will significantly improve the passenger 
arrival and interchange experience at these Gateways and help 
to prepare for the increase in patronage from the Transpennine 
Route Upgrade. 

The Huddersfield scheme will transform the walking and 
cycling route between the bus and rail stations, through 
additional and more direct crossings, way-marking, and safety 
enhancements, encouraging seamless interchange between 
the transport hubs. 

At Dewsbury Station, walking and cycling enhancements to the 
western entrance will improve accessibility, bringing it up to the 
access standards of the main southern entrance.  Further 
measures within the station itself, including a new shelter and 
accessible toilet and changing room, will create a better 
environment for passengers. 

Funding Huddersfield - £1.885m (£1.550m TCF/CA, £335k Kirklees) 
Dewsbury - £568,210 (£344,688 WYCA & £223,522 CCIF 
contribution) 

Delivery Internal 

Current Status Huddersfield and Dewsbury in delivery 
 

On site Dewsbury Start 
January 2021 (highways) 
May 2021 (station) 
 
Huddersfield  
St Georges Street - complete 
Remainder started in September 2020 

 
       
  
 

 
 
 

  

Page 33



 

 

 

Project Active Travel Funding - Tranche 2 

Project 
description 

In November 2020 the government confirmed the awards to 
local authorities as part of Tranche 2 of the Active Travel 
Funding, the first stage of a £2 billion investment across 
England in walking and cycling over the next five years.  

Tranche 2 was allocated to local authorities to provide on road 
facilities to support safe walking and cycling and to help make 
sure the road, bus and rail networks are ready to respond to 
future increases in demand. 

The key to tranche 2 is quick delivery and the department for 
Transport wants that, as far as possible schemes to be 
committed by March 2022, however there is an understanding 
that this may not be possible in many cases. In these cases, 
they would look for commitments such as agreed business 
cases and contracts to deliver or failing that, robust plans 
based on consultation would need to be in place 

As part of Tranche 2 allocations form the Active Travel Fund, 
Kirklees has received £1.9 Million. Given that the schemes 
need to be delivered quickly, schemes proposed have been 
selected based on the level of design work already undertaken, 
whether they are already in other deliver programmes, in 
addition to their strategic fit within existing policies and 
programmes.  

The three schemes being progressed are: 

1- Huddersfield St Johns Road/Huddersfield Ring Road 

Cost £1.1Million 

 
The aim of this scheme is to provide segregated cycle tracks 
on the southern and northern side of the ring road junction, 
continuing along St. John’s Road to link on to the Page 34



 

 

Bradley/Birkby Greenway. It is proposed that the traffic lights 
at the junction will be amended to provide improved facilities 
for cyclists. This scheme forms part of the wider Station 
Gateway area being developed as part of the Huddersfield 
Blueprint ambition 
 

2- Spen Valley Links to the A638 
Cost £500,000 

 
Improvements to walking and cycling access to the Spen 
Valley Greenway (NCN66) in and around Cleckheaton. The 
scheme will complement plans to introduce new cycling and 
walking infrastructure on the A638 Bradford Road corridor as 
part of West Yorkshire’s successful Transforming Cities Fund 
(TCF) bid.  
 
The scheme includes changes to on-street signage, new 
permitted cycle access, reallocating road space to provide 
new cycle lanes, and improved walking and cycling access to 
ramps serving the strategic Spen Valley Greenway (NCN66) 
route. 
 
The TCF programme is currently finalising the full extent of 
the Spen Valley links schemes and when this is known, 
consultation will commence, albeit as part the TCF 
programme. The ATF will therefore act as a complimentary 
package of works and funding.  
 
 
 
 Page 35



 

 

 
 
 

3- Dewsbury Station Access- Calder Valley Greenway Link 
Cost: £300,000 

 
A collection of linked schemes including junction 
improvements at Mill Street West/Dewsbury Ring Road and 
on highway cycle improvements to provide a safe and 
continuous route from the end of the Dewsbury Greenway to 
Dewsbury Railway Station 

There are no cycle facilities at the Old Mill Street junction 
and as a result crossing the junction appears intimidating, 
confusing and unsafe. The route to the station along Old 
Westgate, Nelson Street and Wellington Road, deposits 
cyclists on Dewsbury Ring Road, somewhat removed from 
the new signalised crossing facilities installed to access 
Dewsbury Station. 

The Calder Valley Greenway connects Mirfield and the Spen 
Valley with Dewsbury and this scheme, if implemented, 
provide a safe and continuous route for a large catchment to 
the west of Dewsbury for onward journeys by train to 
Manchester and Leeds.  

The scheme is being brought forward as an accelerated 
element of the M2D2L West Yorkshire Transport Fund 
package of works 

Funding £1,983 Million 

Delivery as far as possible schemes to be committed by March 2022 

Current Status Design/preparing for consultation 

 
  

Page 36



 

 

 

Project Streets for People 

Project 
description 

Streets for People (SfP) is WYCA’s emerging approach to 
appraising the role of streets in creating sustainable, healthy, 
safe, and pleasant places. It focuses on the needs of people 
and place, rather than the movement of vehicles. The £1million 
SfP demonstration project in Kirklees is one of five across 
West Yorkshire to focus on making streets more people 
friendly by improving quality of place, air quality, safety, and 
cycling. 

Selection of a preferred scheme by March 2021. 

Funding £1m 

Delivery tbc 

Current Status Option Appraisal 

 
  

Page 37



 

 

 

Project Dewsbury Town Centre Walking & Cycling 
Transformations 

Project 
description 

Dewsbury Town Centre currently suffers from: 

 Poor accessibility and connectivity; Ring Road severance 

 Inadequate walking/cycling infrastructure to town centre 
and key sites 

 Poor arrival and sense of place experience, very little 
retail activity and poor business confidence 

 Anti-social behaviour 

 Poor air quality and growth constraints 
 
Furthermore, considering the forecast growth in the area, 
particularly for the North Kirklees Growth Zone at Dewsbury 
Riverside and Chidswell, it is likely that the existing transport 
system would be unable to accommodate this growing demand 
sustainably. 
 
The scheme consists of four complimentary parts, namely:  
1. Pedestrian realm improvements to Aldams Road link and 
South Street creating better accessibility to the bus station and 
surrounds; 
2. Halifax Rd/Bradford Rd/Ring Rd sustainable travel 
reconfiguration; 
3. Walk/Cycle Way on Dewsbury Ring Road between Bradford 
Rd and Leeds Rd junctions; 
4. A series of walking and cycling upgrades to internal Town 
Centre streets such as Bond Street, Wellington Street and 
Church Street. 

Funding £10.25m TCF + £1.25m prospective Town Fund 

Delivery Internal & External 

Current Status Outline Business Case target submission Summer 2021 

On site By Spring 2022 

 Page 38



 

 

 
 

Project Dewsbury-Batley Tingley Sustainable Travel Corridor 

Project 
description 

Kirklees Council is seeking to improve and transform sustainable and 
active travel along the A652 Bradford Road and B6124 Soothill Lane. The 
scheme area extends from just north of the junction of the A652 with 
Dewsbury Ring Road to the Rouse Mill Lane gyratory and runs east on 
Soothill Lane to the A653 Leeds Road/Soothill Lane junction.  
 

The proposed scheme entails: 

 New bus priority measures 

 Footway widening and improved/new pedestrian crossings 

 Improved and new cycle lanes 

 Multimodal junction improvements including signal upgrades 
 

 

Funding £6.0m TCF 

Delivery Internal + External 

Current Status OBC target submission date is September 2021 

On site June 2022 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Soothill 
Lane 

A652 

Page 39



 

 

Project Dewsbury-Cleckheaton Sustainable Travel 
Corridor (A638) 

Project 
description 

This corridor is a strategic priority - at the heart of the North 
Kirklees Growth Zone that presents a significant opportunity to 
create a genuinely multimodal transport corridor by significantly 
improving the bus, pedestrian and cycling offer on this key 
commuter route.  
 
The scheme promotes implementation of bus priority treatments 
along the Corridor, seeking to enhance bus reliability, together 
with new footways and crossings to help all prospective 
customers to access bus services. 
 
The scheme will also transform the continuity, safety and 
legibility of the cycle network through a set of on-street cycling 
upgrades and new local links to Spen Valley Greenway and 
Spen Ringway, to maximise its usage, together with localised 
widening and lighting of the Greenway itself. This will help to 
create a holistic network to support everyday journeys, making 
cycling a mode of choice and providing high-value and active 
travel opportunities.  

Funding £12.0m TCF 

Delivery External 

Current Status Outline Business Case target submission date of July 2021. 

On site By Spring 2022 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

 

Project Heckmondwike Bus Station 

Project 
description 

Heckmondwike Bus Station project seeks to transform the 
current Heckmondwike Bus Hub to a full bus station facility on 
the current site. 
 
This includes upgrading the number of bus stands from 4 to 6, 
providing an indoor waiting and seating facility, the potential for 
a retail unit, and a layover bay. 
 
The scheme aims to accommodate forecast growth, relieve the 
network of congestion and provide a better experience for the 
public. 

Funding £4m (Transforming Cities Fund) 

Delivery External (TBC) 

Current Status Outline Business Case – submission date of 1st June 2021. 

On site Spring 2022 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



 

 

Project Huddersfield Bus Station 

Project 
description 

Pre Covid-19, Huddersfield Bus Station supported around 33,000 
passenger trips per day, making it the busiest in West Yorkshire. 
The station however suffers from internal passenger congestion 
at its busiest times, poor quality and old fittings, and a lacklustre 
sense of arrival or gateway experience to Huddersfield Town 
Centre.  There are also issues of pedestrian infringements on the 
bus channel approach. 
 
The proposed project is split into several components, which are: 

 A major interior refurbishment and upgrade to information; 

 Entrance and arrival space ‘canopy’, with planting and 
seating (as shown on the front cover of Huddersfield 
Blueprint); 

 Improvements to access arrangements and public realm; 

 Remediation to infringements and safety on Henry Street. 
 
The project is being developed in partnership between Kirklees 
Council and WYCA, with the Council responsible for the delivery 
of the Entrance Canopy and access/public realm, and WYCA 
responsible for the internal refurbishment, customer information 
and Henry Street. 
 

Funding £9m TCF currently, however a cost uplift request is expected 

Delivery External contractor, likely to be Design & Build for Canopy 
structure 

Current Status Outline Business Case: consultation in June, submission in 
September 

On site Spring-summer 2022 (interior refurb and entrance canopy 
phased) 

 

 

 

 Page 42



 

 

 

 

 
 

Project Trinity Street Access Scheme 

Project 
description 

Kirklees Council and the West Yorkshire Combined Authority 
are seeking to transform walking and cycling connectivity 
between communities west of the ring road (A62 Castlegate) 
and Huddersfield Bus Station/Town Centre. Several options are 
currently being evaluated, including a pedestrian/cycle bridge 
across the ring road and significant upgrades to the existing 
surface crossings and underpass at Trinity Street. 

 

Funding £5.5m TCF 

Delivery External 

Current Status OBC target submission date is September 2021 

On site June 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 43



 

 

Project A629 Wakefield Road Sustainable Travel Corridor 

Project 
description 

The scheme extents are the A629 Wakefield Road between 
Shorehead Roundabout and the A629/A644 (Waterloo) 
junction.  The A629 Penistone Road / Fenay Lane junction is 
also included within the scheme.  
 

The benefits of the scheme will be to assist Local Plan 
delivery, provide improved facilities for walking, cycling and 
public transport movements to meet Climate Change 
Emergency requirements and to provide reliability benefits for 
all road users in a safe and efficient manner. 

Funding Potentially £13.6m (comprising £7.6m West Yorkshire 
Transport Fund and £6.0m Transforming Cities Fund).   

Delivery Tbc 

Current Status SOBC – Strategic Outline Business Case 

On Site 2023 

 

 
 

 
  

Page 44



 

 

Appendix 2 – Full Process Chart for WYCA Assurance Framework 
 
 

 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

ECONOMY & NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL 

Agenda Plan 2020/21  

 

Date/Location Issues for Consideration Officer Contact 

 
Tuesday 6 October 2020 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 
 

 
Community Response to Covid 

 
 
 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 
 
 
 

Work Programme 
 

 
Jill Greenfield 

Carl Whistlecraft 
 

 
 

Steven Wright 
John Buddle 
Amy Reddick 

 
 

Leigh Webb  

 
8th December 2020 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 
 

 
Waste Service Update 

 
 
 

Air Quality Update 
 
 

Active Travel 
 
 
 

Work Programme 
 

 
Will Acornley 

 
 

 
Martyn Wood 

 
 
 

Keith Bloomfield 
Miguel D’Souza 

 
Leigh Webb 

   

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9



2 

 
21 January 2021 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 
 

 
Additional Restrictions Grant/ new 

business grants with the new lock down 
measures 

 
 

Fly Tipping 
 
 

Community Champions Grant Scheme – 
update 

 
 

 
Work Programme 

 
 

 
 

Chris Duffil 
 
 
 

Will Acornley 
 
 

Jill Greenfield 
 
 
 
 

Jodie Harris  

 
4 March 2021 

 
 

Virtual Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Private Sector Rented sector assistance 
 
 

Major Transport Schemes - Update 
 
 
 
 
 

Work Programme 
 

 
 

Joanne Bartholomew 
 
 

Richard Hollinson 
Keith Bloomfield 
Andrew Higson 
Tim Lawrence 

 
 

Jodie Harris  

 
See Work Programme for items not yet scheduled. 
 
Hot food Takeaway SPD  
Inward Investment Strategy 
Blueprint/Regeneration 

P
age 48



3 

Digital Update 
Smaller Town Initiatives  
Winter Maintenance Linked to Planning 
Dewsbury Town Deal 
 
 
 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

ECONOMY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

MEMBERS:  Councillors: Harpreet Uppal (Lead Member), Martyn Bolt, Richard Eastwood, Yusra Hussain, Gwen Lowe and John Taylor  
 Co-optees: Andrew Bird, Chris Friend, Eilidh Ogden 

 
SUPPORT:  Jodie Harris , Principal Governance & Democratic Engagement Officer 
 

POTENTIAL ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 
 

ISSUE APPROACH AND AREAS OF FOCUS OFFICER/PARTNER COMMENTS 
FULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES – CARRIED FORWARD FROM 2019/20 

1. Inward Investment Strategy 
 

 Inward Investment Strategy 

 which businesses/sectors should be targeted and what do they need 
to be sustainable and grow. 

 alternative sources of finance for environmental issues/ alternative 
energy use. 

Originally scheduled for April 2020 
(cancelled due to Covid 19) 

2. Tackling Poverty 
 

 What organisations can do to design services which integrate and 
consider the impact of poverty in how people access, use and 
experience services; 

 How poverty can be considered as part of decision-making 
processes across the authority;  

 Inclusive Economy work – e.g. good work, local spend and social 
value;  

 How can employers work together to optimise the opportunities 
for investment in good quality pre-Apprenticeships and 
Apprenticeships programmes? How can we transfer good 
practice in health and social care to other sectors of the local 
economy? 

  What Council can do to support their own staff who may be living   
in poverty e.g. poverty proofing in a work-based setting. 

Originally scheduled for April 2020 
(cancelled due to Covid 19) 
 
Considered by Corporate Scrutiny 
Panel (Sept 2020) 

P
age 51



 

2 
 

3. Active Travel 
 
 
 

To continue to monitor current and planned infrastructure. 
 
 

Originally considered at joint meeting 
on 28 Feb 2020 - Panel resolved to 
keep the issue on the work programme 
and arrange a half day workshop to 
allow for more in depth consideration.  
Cycling and Walking visit (29 March 
cancelled due to Covid 19) To be re-
arranged when possible 
 

4. Digital Strategy 
 
 

 Progress with physical infrastructure but also in respect of the wider 
promotion of the advantages of the Kirklees district.  

 The work being undertaken relating to the development of 
appropriate skills (links in with Skills Strategy) 

 The work being done to ensure that residents within more rural areas 
are supported to be able to access a digital network that is fit for 
purpose and future proofed. 

 

Originally considered March 2020. 
Panel resolved to receive update on 
digital agenda after 12 months. 

5. Air Quality Following introduction of 5 year Action Pan, to monitor and consider the 
following: 

 

 Which measures have proven effective and which provide good 
value for money.  

 Addressing the issue of vehicles with idling engines particularly 
outside schools. 

 How the planning system can be used/will address issues in relation 
to infrastructure to encourage sustainable transport/active travel.  

 Improving infrastructure to encourage travel by public 
transport/cycling and walking.  

 Encouraging/ facilitating better options for travel to school to 
reduce use of private cars. 
 

 

The Panel considered the Air Quality 
Action Plan in Oct 19 as part of its 
development. A number of areas to 
monitor were identified following 
implementation of the Action Plan. 

P
age 52



 

3 
 

6. Planning Related Matters Hot Food Takeaway  
 
 
CIL + Viability Guidance  
 

Deferred from Jan 2020 (likely Apr 
2021) 
 
Considered Jan 2020 – further 
examination prior to adoption by 
Council 

7. Towns and Communities in Kirklees  Assess the objectives/delivery of plans to include the 
aspirations/vision for the towns, public realm and infrastructure. 

 Consideration of the wider context of other town centres/ villages 
across Kirklees to include looking at the key challenges and 
opportunities that could influence this agenda.  

 

July 2019 Report on the Huddersfield 
Blueprint – with a focus on 
engagement and consultation. 
 
Future updates/reports requested as 
plans develop 
 

PROPOSED NEW ISSUE FOCUS OFFICER/PARTNER COMMENTS 

1. COVID-19  
 
 
 
 

To consider the impact of COVID-19 on areas falling within the remit of 
the Economy and Neighbourhoods Panel. Potential areas for 
consideration: 
 

   Waste Collection/Recycling/Fly Tipping 

   Economic Impact including: 
- Business Grants (processing and take up) 
- Measures to support the local economy and aid 

economic recovery 
- Understanding the budget implications of dealing with 

the crisis and the longer-term financial impact. 
- Impact on poverty and tackling inequalities 

 

 Community Response (including capacity of voluntary 
organisations within the community and the strengthening ) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 53



 

4 
 

 Housing Rents (Impact on tenants following recent increase in 
council housing rents ; help provided to tenants who may require 
financial support)  

 Supplementary Planning Documents – Residential Design and 
Householder extensions and alterations 

 Private Rented Housing Sector (Support as a result of Covid) 

 
 
To be scheduled: 
Hot food Takeaway SPD  
Inward Investment Strategy 
Blueprint/Regeneration 
Digital Update 
Smaller Town Initiatives  
Winter Maintenance Linked to Planning 
Dewsbury Town Deal 
 
 

P
age 54


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Interests
	7 Private Rented Housing Sector (Support as a result of Covid-19)
	8 Major Transport Schemes - Update
	9 Work Programme and Agenda Plan
	EN Panel WP 2020-21- proposed items as of March 21


